Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, June 27, 2023 in the Board Room of the Authority,
1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items and such other items
that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon. This meeting will be live streamed on RTA'’s
Board Page www.RideRTA.com/board via the meeting date for staff and members of the public.
Members of the public may attend in person.

Based on Centers for Disease Control (“CDC”) guidance to avoid crowded places where you cannot stay
six feet away from others and Ohio Department of Public Health advice regarding congregating and social
distancing, as well as RTA’s interest in protecting community and employee health and safety, RTA
Board Room and Meeting Room 1 capacity is limited to thirty-six (36) people to allow for social distancing.
To accommodate members of the public, RTA will limit the number of staff permitted in the Board Room.
All persons entering RTA’s Main Office Building (‘MOB”) at 1240 West 6" Street are required to maintain
a distance of six feet or more from other individuals who are not members of their family or household.

As a result of a federal court order on April 18, 2022, the CDC's January 29, 2021 order requiring masks
on public transportation conveyances and at transportation hubs is no longer in effect. The CDC
continues to recommend that people wear masks in indoor public transportation settings at this time. As
a result, GCRTA recommends, but will not require, that members of the public wear a mask/face
covering.

The meeting package will be posted on RTA'’s website at (www.riderta.com/board), on RTA’'s Facebook
page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

8:30 A.M. Compensation Committee

e Executive Session Requested — To consider the appointment, employment, dismissal,
discipline, promotion, demotion, or compensation of a public employee or official.

Audit, Safety Compliance And Real Estate Committee

e Executive Session Requested — To discuss the results of the 2022 Audit by the
Auditor of the State.

e Internal Audit Quarterly Report — Presentation of 1%t quarter 2023 audit work.

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee

e TRACTION Results Reporting — Presentation of 1st Quarter 2023 scorecards and
customer experience surveys

Board of Trustees Meeting — agenda attached

India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

IBT:tab
Attachment

Scan this QR code to access the meeting schedule, live streams and meeting materials.




AGENDA
RTA COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Tuesday, June 27, 2023

Committee Members: Mayor David E. Weiss, Chair
Mayor FPaul A, Koomar
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss

3 Rolt Call

IL. Executive Session Requested — To consider the appointment,
employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, compensation of
a public employee or official.

H Adjourn



AGENDA

RTA AUDIT, SAFETY COMPLIANCE AND REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, June 27, 2023

Committee Members: Mayor Paul A. Koomar, Chair
Ms, Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair
Mr. Terence P. Joyce
Ms. Calley Mersmann
Mayor David E. Weiss

Roll Call

Executive Session Reguested - To discuss the results of the 2022 Audit
by the Auditor of the Stata.

Internal Audit Quarterly Report - Presentation of 1% quarter 2023 audit work

Presenter(s).
« Tony Garofoli, Internal Audit, Executive Director

Adjourn



AGENDA
RTA ORGANIZATIONAL, SERVICES & PERFORMANCE MONITORING COMMITTEE

Tuesday, June 27, 2023

Committee Members: Mayor Anthony D. Biasiotta, Chair
Ms. Karen Gabriel Moss, Vice Chair

Mayor David E. Weiss
Ms. Lauren R. Waich

i Roll Call

i, TRACTION Results Reporting - Presentation of 1st Quaner 2023 scorecards
and customer experience surveys.

Presenter(s):
» India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEQ, RTA
= Ehren Bingaman, Managing Principal, TransPro
+« James Rubin, Principal, TransPro

M. Adjourn



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Maeting
Tuesday, June 27, 2023

Call to order
Ral! Call
Certification regarding notice of meeting

Approval of the Board Meeting minutes:
»  May 2, 2023 Special Board Meeting
» May 16, 2023 Board Meeting

Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items:
a. Inperson
b. Phone: 440-276-4600
¢, Web form (1 comment limit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and
staff

Board Governance Committee report

Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
«  Acting Chair; President Charles P. Lucas

Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
s  Chair: Mayor Anthony [, Biasiotta

Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
=«  Chair; Mayor Paul A. Koomar

External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
»  Chair; Mr. Terence P. Joyce

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
+« Board Liaison: TBD

Ad Hoe Committee reports:;
+  Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — President Charles P. Lucas, Chair
+  Ad Hoc Technology Committee ~ TBD

Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

Executive Session Requested - To consider the appointment, employment,

dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, compensation of a public employee or

official.



RTA Board of Trustees

June 27, 2023
Page 2

16, Introduction of resolutions:

A.

2023-41 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2023-2 with Burgess & Niple, inc. for
Project 19.63 - Engineering Services for Special Bridge Inspections for a
period of 24 months in an amount not to exceed $348,521.72 (RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
hudget)

2023-42 ~ Authorizing Contract No, 2023-054 with Hill international, Inc.
for Project 19.67 — On-Call Construction Inspection - 2023 in an amount
not to exceed $450,000.00 for a period of twenty-four (24) months (RTA
Capital and/or Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget)

2023-43 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2023-57 with NEO Building
Construction, LLC for project 19.33 - W. 65" & W, 117" RTS generators
in an amount not to exceed $166,924.00 {RTA Capital Fund, Engineering
& Project Development Department budget)

2023-44 - Enacting Chapter 1210 of the Codified Rules and Regulations
of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

2023-45 — Authorizing the filing of grant applications, furnishing of
additional information and accepting funds from the State of Ohio for
State Fiscal Year 2024 Financial Assistance under all State of Ohio
programs

2023-46 — Authorizing the submission of grant applications, entering info
funding agreements, providing assurances or other documentation and
accepting funds from NOACA for State Fiscal Years 2024, 2025 and 2026
for financial assistance and capital projects under all NOACA programs

2023-47 - Amending and restating employment agreement of India L.
Birdsong Terry as General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and authorizing the
execution of that agreement

16, Secretary-Treasurer's Report

General Fund Revenue — status as of May 31, 2023 versus 2022 actuals
General Fund Revenue — status as of May 31, 2023 versus the 2023
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2023, actual receipts
through June 2023

Inventory of Treasury Investments as of May 31, 2023

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis)
as of May 31, 2023

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through May 31,
2023



RTA Board of Trustees
June 27, 2023

Page 3

17.
18.
19.
20.
21,

22.

23.

g. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of May, 2023
h.  Composition of Investment Portfolio as of May 31, 2023
i.  Banking and Financial Relationships as of May 31, 2023

General Manager's Report
President's Report

Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on public transit related items:
a. In person
b. Phone; 440-276-4600
c. Web form (1 comment timit) Comments will be forwarded to Board and

staff

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, July 25, 2023 in the
Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113, This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Board page
(www.RideRTA corn/board) by clicking the meeting date. The public is welcome
to attend in person.

Adjournment



Minutes

Special RTA Board Meeting
10:31 a.m., Tuesday, May 2, 2023

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss, (Vice Chair), Joyce, Koomar, McCall, Weiss

Not present: Biasiofta, Pellot, Welch

Staff: Birdsong Terry, Burney, Capek, Catalusci, Caver, Dangelo, Davidson, Dimmick, Fields, Fleig,
Freitich, Garofoli, Gautam, Jenkins, Jones, Kirkland, Lath, Laule, Marquit Renwald, Miller, Miranda,
Reynolds, Schipper, Steiner, Sutula, Talley, Walker-Minor, Woodford, Young

Public: Durbin, Loh

The meeting was called to order at 10:31 a.m. Six (6) committee members were present.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other
interested persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this

Board regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Resolutions

A 2023-33 - Expressing appreciation to Luz N. Pellot for her service as a member of the Board of
Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and extending best wishes for
many years to come, the adoption of which was moved Ms. McCall, seconded by Ms. Moss

and approved by unanimous vote.
President Lucas thanked her for her commitment and service.

B. 2023-34 - Expressing appreciation to Valarie J. McCall for her service as a member of the
Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority and extending best
wishes for many years to come, the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by

Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote.

Mresident Lucas thanked Ms. McCall for her years of service to the Board and her service to
the American Public Transportation Association (APTA) where she served as the President
and received a service recognition award last year. Ms. McCall thanked the Board and staff
for their hard work. She acknowledged Ms. Pellot and welcomed the two new Board members

joining later this month.

Civilian Oversight Commitiee Update

Board Vote;
1. To create the Ad Hoc Selection Committee to review applicants for appointment to the Civilian

Oversight Committee. It was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded Mr. Joyce and approved by
unanimous vote,

2. The Board will indicate the number of applicants the Ad Hoc Selection Committee will provide
to the full Board.



RTA Board of Trustees
May 2, 2023
Page 2

Ms. Moss said she needed a refresher on the COC. She requested the Ad Hoc Selection
Committee look at the staff recommendation and the 24 resumes to see why candidates were
eliminated. Ms. Burney added that staff briefed the Board at the last meeting regarding the
screening. The COC procedures was approved by the Board and an update provided in April,
Ms. McCall said the criteria indicated that seven candidates would be brought back. Ms. Moss
said she is just seeing the items requested to vote on today. President Lucas added that the
Board discussed these items at the last meeting when Ms. Moss was not present.

It was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vole to
bring back seven (7) applicants to the Board.

3. Board President Rev. Lucas will select three (3) Board Members to serve as the voting
members of the Ad Hoc Selection Committee. It was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by
Ms. McCall and approved by unanimous vote. The three members are Ms. Welch, Mayor
Koomar and Mayor Weiss.

4, Board President Rev. Lucas will appoint one of these three (3) Board members to be the Chair
of the Ad Haoc Selection Committee. It was moved by Ms. McCall, seconded by Mayor Weiss
and approved by unanimous vate, Ms, Welch will serve as the chair,

The meeting was adjourned at 11:04 a.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:17 a.m. May 16, 2023

Board Members: Lucas (Chair), Moss (Vice Chair), Koomar, Meramann, Sleasman, Weiss, Welch

Not present: Biasiotta, Joyce

Staff: Birdsong Terry, Burney, Cascarilla, Caver, Coffey, Dangelo, Davidson, Fields, Fielg, Freilich,
Gautam, Harris, Jenking, Kirkland, Miller, Mothes, Schipper, Walker-Minor, Woodford, Zimmerman

Public: Gibbons, Meissner, Welo

The meeting was called to order at 9:17 a.m. There were seven (7) board members present,

It was advised that notice of this meeting had been posted more than twenty-four hours in advance of
the meeting, that the usual notification had been given the news media and other interested persons,
and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board regarding
notice of meeting had been complied with.

Minutes

President Lucas stated that the minutes from the April 18, 2023 Board Meeting had been previously
distributed and reviewed, and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There
were no corrections. It was moved and seconded. The minutes were approved.

Public Commenits —~ Agenda ltems

1. Alrric Stewart - The discontinued 15A route does not cost RTA more money to run. This route
could share service with the 15, 1t would connect to the 48A, through Shaker Square, and
MLK. It could share routes with the 50 and 11. This will improve service and stay in line with
NextGen, creating efficiency and direct transfer to schools, hospitals and work.

2. Mr._Rowan - He rides the 22. He put his book on the 26 to support the Cleveland Reads
Program. He was told he cannot put a radio flyer cart on the buses or store the cart on the

front carriage.

Committee Reports

President Lucas stated that the Rail Car funding presentation event last week was nice.

Community Advisory Committee {(CAC)

There was no report.

Ad Moo Commitiee Reports

There were no reports.



RTA Board of Trusiees
May 16, 2023
Page 2 of 5

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

New Hires:

CENBOAWN

Tenisha Smith, Operator

Henry Johnson, Operator

Patricia Hill, Benefits Spacialist

Justin Atbrecht, Equipment Servicer
Timothy Wetherbee, Equipment Servicer
Jorden Hulgin, Maintenance Planner
Kayla Freed, Engineering Co-Op

Jose Pancheco, Engineering Co-Op
Gennaro Garofoli, Engineering Co-Op

10. Tanya Gudger, Operator

11. Maxine Parish, Operator

12. Tanisha Rouse, Operator
13. Marilyn Irby, Operator

Fromations:

1.

Philip Waldren, Haating/Air Conditioning Mechanic

2. Debra Ervin, Vehicle Servicer
3. Jonathan Ciesla, Project Resource Manager

Introduction of Resolutions:

A

2023-35 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-025 with Terik Roofing, inc. for Project 19.36 —
Hayden Garage Roof Replacement, as specified, in an amount not to exceed $5,688,162.00
(RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by
unanimous vote,

2023-36 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-030 with Suburban Maintenance & Construction,
Inc. for Project 62A — Rehabilitation of Track/Platiorm Bridges over W, 117" street, as
specified, in an amount not to exceed $7,563,549.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering
& Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by

Ms. Welch, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote,

Ms. Moss asked since there was only one responsive bid if this is the best price and if it is
within the budget. Ms. Dangelo said two bids were received but one was non-responsive

because it was more than 10% over the estimate, The current bid was 1.9% less than the
estimate so it was deemaed fair and reasonable.

2023-37 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-044 with Railworks Track Services LILC for Project
18.37 - Catenary Rehabilitation Phase 2, as specified, in an amount not to exceed
$3,799,835.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms, Welch and
approved by unanimous vote.

2023-38 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-50 with Reladyne, LLC for the furnishing of engine
oil, as specified and as required, for a period of one (1} year in an amount not to exceed
$293,250.40 (General Fund, Fleet Management Department budget), the adoption of which
was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by unanimous vote.



RTA Board of Trustees
May 16, 2023
Page 3of 5

E.  2023-39 — Authorizing Contract No. 2023-065 with Kronos Incorporated to provide Kronos
annual subscription and support for a period of one year in an amount not to exceed
$143,805.82 (General Fund, Management Information Services Department budget), the
adoption of which was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms. Welch and approved by

unanimous vote.

F.  2023-40 - Appropriating the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's expenditures or
outlays for the Fiscal Year ("FY") 2024 Capital Improvement Budget, the adoption of which
was moved by Ms. Welch, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by unanimous vote.

Secretary-Treasurer's Report

Rajan D. Gautam, Deputy General Manager of Finance and Secretary-Treasurer gave the report.

The annual inflation rate in the U.S. increased from 2.5% in January 2020 to a high of 9.1% in June
2022. Since June 2022, the inflation rate has been falling. At the end of April 2023, inflation is down
to 4.9%. It is expected to continue to fall in 2023 but remains higher than the long-term rate of 3.9%.
The feds raised the interest rate again on May 3, 2023, Interest rates are now at 5.08% which is the
highest level in 15 years. The Ohio Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) unemployment rate for April is

not available yet.

YTD ridership through April 2023 is 22% higher than 2022, April 2023 ridership was 12.3% above
April 2022. YTD passenger fares are down 1.7% due to timing issues of large U-pass payments and
similar checks that come in later. April 2023 fare revenue is 3.3% below the April 2022 levels and
4.9% below budget. Passenger fares for 2020 were 43% below pre-pandemic 2019 levels. in 2021,
they were just over 50% below 2019. RTA is better in this category compared to six peer agencies.
Compared to larger transit systems, RTA's passenger fare recovery is better.

Aprit 2023 sales tax receipts were 9.4% higher compared to April 2022, YTD sales tax is 7.2%
higher. Nineteen of the twenty-three categories that make up the sales tax base were positive. The

May sales tax number are expected later this week.

General Manager/CEQ Report

India L. Birdsong Terry, General Manager, CEQ gave the report. RTA was awarded $130M to be
leveraged with $213M secured to date for the rail car replacement program. FTA Administrator Nuria
Fernandez, U.S. Senator Sherrod Brown and U.S. Congresswoman Shontel Brown, RTA Board
members, dignitaries and staff were in attendance. She thanked the staff for their work on this event.
ODOT awarded RTA $12M for construction. The money will be used to support the Cuyahoga
MetroHealth Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) project.

Calley Mersmann and Jeffrey W. Sleasman took their oath of office as new RTA Board members last
week. Today is their first official day of business. Valarie J. McCalf and Luz N. Pellot were
acknowledged for their service on the Board during a Special Board Meeting on May 2. A
presentation on the adverising standards will be presented during the June Committee meeting prior
to a new advertising vendor recommendation this October. Ms. Welch thanked the staff for prioritizing
this effort and listening to the community around RTA's reputation and brand. The RTA Awards
Banguet is this Friday, May 18. The Board is invited to attend.



RTA Board of Trustees
May 16, 2023
Pagedof 5

Public Comments - public transit related items

1.

Paut Meissner - He is & member of Clevelanders for Public Transit (CPT) and an applicant for
the Community Advisory Committee (CAC). He commended the staff and Board on the rail
car replacement project. This is a great project for the community to use a single rail car on
light rail and heavy rail lines.

President Lucas asked if the operators assist with putting bikes on the racks/buses. Ms.
Birdsong Terry said the Transit Ambassadors can assist,

Airric Stewart — Evidence was not provided that the 15A would be inefficient. Information has
not been provided fo the public on the benefit of the new CAC structure. There has been no
explanation as to why meetings have been put on hold. He wants the public to have more time
for public commaents.

Rev. Pinkney Butts — She asked that the rail car funding be used for all communities. She
asked if the Superior escalator is fixed yet and what the plans are for k. 79th Street Station.
What are the plans for people with disabilities, Black people and poor, President Lucas said
the E. 79" Street Station will be updated. She added that elevators are needed instead of
ramps for those who do not have electric wheelchairs,

Dontez Taylor — He thanked RTA. Bathrooms are needed at the train stations. The #8 and
circulators should be put back into service.

Hayes Rowan (webform);
A) Requesting review and change of Paratransit policy prohibiting ADA riders from using

carriages (e.g., baby stroller,) to transport groceries and other items.

B) Minimize vehicle idling: Encouraging Operators, (fixed-route & para) to understand and
comply with vehicle-idiing best practices set out in the national campaign, ldling Gets You
Nowhere, and well exemplified in Cleveland Police Admin Order, 08-155, which reads,
essentially: “If it isn't an emergency, [and won't create hardship,] turn the engine off." (We've

only 1 set of lungs.)

) Adopt a records request policy allowing requests to be fulfifled free of charge to indigent
requestors, and a file-share app-platform whereby video can be fransmitted via email, (City of
Cleveland protocol ) and reviewed by requestor and district manager via distance technology.
{many personal computers do not have CD ports.)

Executive Session Regquested

President Lucas asked for a motion and second to go into executive session to consider the
appointment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, compensation of a public employee or
official. It was moved by Mayor Weiss, seconded by Ms, Welch, There was seven (7) ayes and none

opposed.

There may be additional comments from the Board after the executive session.

It was moved by Ms. Moss, seconded by Mayor Weiss to come out of the executive session. There
were seven (7) ayes and none opposed.



RTA Board of Trustees
May 16, 2023
Page 5 of 5

President Lucas stated that the Board is considering renewing the employment contract for General
Manager/CEO India Birdsong Terry. They anticipate having additional information to share at the

June Board Mesting

Upcoming Mestings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduted for Tuesday, June 27, 2023, in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA's Board page (www.RideRTA.com/board) by selecting the meeting date.
The public is welcome to attend in person.

The meeting was adjournad at 10:49 a.m.

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
011222 o
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolulion No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 19.63 ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 2023-41
SPECIAL BRIDGE INSPECTIONS Date:
June 22, 2023
VENDOR:  BURGESS & NIPLE, INC. Initiator:
Engineeting & Project
AMOUNT:  NTE $348,521.72 FOR A PERIQOD OF 24 MONTHS Development
Departmert

ACTION REQUEST;

# Approval 0 Review/Comment (1 Information Only {1 Other

1.0  PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution wil! allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority ("Authority”) to enter into a contract for Project 19.63 — Engineering Services for
Special Bridge Inspections.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: As required by federal and state bridge inspection
standards, the Authority must have a biennial special inspection program to document
findings of those bridges considered to have non-redundant, steel tension members carrying
primary load paths from the service loads. In addition, and in accordance with Ohio Revised
Code §5523.17, the Authority's structures must be inspected on an annual basis to
determine the physical and functional condition of the structure and confirm continuity of
service requirerments.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals ("RFP") was posted on the
Authority's Procurement wabsite and advertised in the local newspapers. Thirty-five interested
parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. These services
were solicited through a competitive negotiated procurement, utilizing the Brooks Act
procedures. Under this process, the Authority's evaluation panet first selects the most
technically qualified firm, solicits a pricing proposal from that firm, and negotiates price only with
that firm. Should the Authority determine that an agreement could not be reached with the most
qualified firm, it may reject that proposal and repeat the process with the next most qualified
firm. In this instance, negotiations wera held with Burgess & Niple, inc., the first ranked firm,
and an acceptable price was reached.

Burgess & Niple, Inc. has successfully completed projects for the Authority, Oklahoma DOT,
Summit County, and Chio DOT, amang others,

The Procurement Department performed a cost analysis and determined the proposed pricing
from Burgess & Niple, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $348,521.72 for a period of 24 months,
to be fair and reasonable to the Authority. This negotiated price is approximately 0.4% below
the Independent Engineer's Estimate of $350,000.00.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGEOUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 15% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Burgess and Niple, Inc.,
has committed {0 achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of 2LMN, Inc.
(Subcontinent Asian male-owned) in the amount of $38,055.00, and Denise's Flagging and
Construction (African American female-owned) in the amount of $15,000.00 for a total of
$53,0565.00 or 156%.

50 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.




Staff Summary & Comments 1023-41
Engineering Services for Special Bridge Inspections
Page 2

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development
Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to
100% lecal funds, in an amount not to exceed $348,521.72.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will prevent the Authority fram
meeting federal and state regulatory requirements,

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
June 6, 2023 Operational Planning & Infrastructure Commitiee meeting. it is recommended
that the offer from Burgess & Niple, inc. be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing
the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance
with the Procurement requirements.

““““

( General Manager, Chief Exeafitivie Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-41

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-2 WITH BURGESS & NIPLE, INC, FOR
PROJECT 12.63 —~ ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR SPECIAL BRIDGE
INSPECTIONS FOR A PERIOD OF 24 MONTHS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED $348,521.72 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING &
PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) requires
special bridge inspection services, and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Burgess & Niple, Inc., with an office located at 330 Rush
Alley, Suite 700, Columbus, Ohio 43215, to perform said services was received on February 16,
2023 in response to a competitive solicitation; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, Burgess & Niple, Inc. has agreed to perform the required
services in an amount not to exceed $348,521.72 for a period of 24 months; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of Burgess &
Niple, Inc. to be the most advantageous to the Authority, and recommends acceptance thereof
by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of Burgess & Niple, Inc. to provide services under
Project 19.63 — Engineering Services for Special Bridge inspections for a period of 24 months,
be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Burgess & Niple, inc. for the perfarmance
of said services.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but nat limited to 100% local
funds, in an amount not fo exceed $348,521.72.

Section 4. That said contract shali be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Burgess & Niple, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 15% minimum DBE goa! assigned

to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: June 27, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
O1-12-22 S - - -
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: ON-CALL CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION - 2023 2023-42
Date:
VENDOR:  HILL INTERNATIONAL, INC. June 22, 2023

AMOUNT: NOT TO EXCEED $450,000.00 FOR A TWENTY-FOUR & Project

tnitiator; Engineering

(24) MONTH PERIOD Development
Department

ACTION REQUEST:
Approvat [1 Review/Comment [ Information Only (1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

50

6.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will aliow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
("Authority™} to enter into a contract for On-Call Construction Inspection services for a period of

twanty-four (24) maonths,

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: This project is to obtain professional services o provide
construction inspection support to internal Authority staff. Tasks will be issued on an asg-
needed basis to support staff on various projects throughout the Authority.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Request for Proposals ("RFP") was posted on the
Authority’s Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twenty-eight (28)
interested parties, including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package.
Three (3) proposals were received an April 20, 2023, These services were solicited through a
competitive negotiated procurement, utilizing the Brooks Act procedures, Under this process,
the Authority's evaluation panel first selects the most technically qualified firm, solicits a pricing
proposat from that firm, and negotiates price only with that firm. Should the Authority determine
that an agreement could not be reached with the most qualified firm, it may reject that proposal
and repeat the process with the next most qualified firm. In this instance, negotiations were held
with Hill international, Inc., the first-ranked firm, and an acceptable price was reached.

Hill International, Inc. has successfully completed projects for the Authority, including the
Rehabilitation of the Cuyahoga Viaduct, the Light Rail Track Rehabilitation, and the Red Line
Track Curve Replacement, among others.

The Procurement Department performed a cost analysis and determined the proposed pricing
from Hill International, Inc., in an amount not fo exceed $450,000.00 for a period of twenty-four
(24) months, to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met. A 13% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Hill International In¢. has
committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Somat Engineering
of Ohio Inc. (Subcantinent Asian male-owned) in the amount of $58,500.00 or 13%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Capital
and/or RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department
budget, including but not limited to, 100% local funds and FTA Grants {0 be determined,
in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00 for a period of twenty-four (24) months.



Staff Summary & Comments 2023-42
On-Call Construction Inspection - 2023
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would leave the Authority without the
staff required to properly support the various projects underway and create hardship on the
Authority's Engineering Department due to their existing workload.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the June
6, 2023 Operational Planning and Infrastructure Committee meeting. It is recommended that
the offer from Hill International, Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

890 ATTACHMENTS: None
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements,

7
ﬁ’;‘l‘: “ _,/ .
el ¢ wﬂaﬁ? ,,,,, -

G?ﬁeral Manager, Chief Exectfivé pﬂ" ger



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-42

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-054 WITH HILL INTERNATIONAL., INC.
FOR PROQJECT 19,67 — ON-CALL CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION - 2023 IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $450,000.00 FOR A PERIOD OF TWENTY-FOUR
(24) MONTHS (RTA CAPITAL AND/OR DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING
& PRQJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) requires task
order inspection services; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of Hill International, Inc., with an office located at 8100 South
Hills Blvd., Suite 230, Broadview Heights, Ohio 44147, to perform said services was received on
April 20, 2023 in response to a competitive solicitation; and

WHEREAS, after negotiations, Hill international, Inc. has agreed to perform the required
services in an amount not to exceed $450,000.00 for a period of twenty-four (24) months, and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Exacutive Officer deems the offer of Hill
International, inc. to be the most advantageous to the Authority, finds the price to be fair and
reasonable for said services, and recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio;

Section 1. That the negotiated offer of Hill International, Inc. to provide various task
order services under Project 19.67 On-Call Construction Inspection - 2023 be and the same is
hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Hill International, Inc. for the performance
of said services.

Section 3. This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Capitai and/or RTA
Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not
limited to 100% local Funds and FTA Grants to be determined, in an amount not to exceed
$450,000.00 for a period of twenty-four (24) months.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the confractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regiona! Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that Hill International, Inc. will attempt to excead the 13% minimum DREE goal assigned
to this procurement,

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: June 27, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 19.33 ~W. 65"H & W. 117T™M RTS 2023-43
GENERATORS Date-
June 22, 2023
VENDOR: NEO BUILDING CONSTRUCTION, LLC Initiator: Engineering
& Project
AMOUNT:  AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $166,924.00 Development
Department
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval (1 Review/Commert [0 Information Only 1 Other
1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

Authority ("Authority”) fo enter into a contract to provide construction services for Project 19.33
-W. 65" & W. 117" RTS Generators.

DESCRIFTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract consists of
remaoving the old UPS system (currently not in use), installing a new backup generator and
transfer switch, and installing decorative fencing around the generators at both W, 65th & W,
117tk Rapid Transit Stations. This project will include all labor, material, eguipment, and
supervision necessary to install a generator at each facility and complete the job in a
workmanlike manner consistent with recognized good practices and current building code
requirements.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bids ("IFB") was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Twelve interested parties,
including potential subcontractors, downioaded the solicitation package, Three bids were
received and opened on April 20, 2023, as follows:

Company Name . . Total Base Bid
NEQ Building Construction, LLC $166,924.00
The Fowler Company $226,358.00
Hatzel & Buehler, Inc. $242 00000

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base
Bid price. The Total Base Bid price of $166,924.00 from NEO Building Construction, LLC is
approximately 1% greater than the Engineer's Estimate of $164,853.14, NEO Building
Construction, LLC was determined to be a responsible bidder.

A cost analysis has been performed, and the bid of NEO Building Construction, LLC has been
determined by the Procurement Department to be fair and reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/ DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have been
met, A 10% DBE goal was established for this procurement. NEQ Building Construction has
committed to achieving the DBE participation goal through the utilization of Irizar Electric LLC
{Hispanic male-owned) in the amount of $40,000.00 or 23.9%.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.
ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital Fund, Engingering

& Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local funds, in an
amount not to exceed $166,924.00.




Staff Summary & Comments 20
W. 651 & W. 117% RTS Generators 23-43

Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this bid. Rejection of this bid would leave the Authority without
reliable backup power for continuous operational services.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid from NEO Building Construction, LLC be
accepted, and the resolution passed autharizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
to enter into a contract.

8.0 ATTACHMENTS: None
Recommended and certified as appropriate to the

availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements.

7
o e J—
Aﬂtﬁ& P

“"f/ General Manager, ChieﬁEﬂ’écuhﬁﬁ @fﬁcer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-43

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2023-57 WITH NEO BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, LLC FOR PROJECT 19,33 - W, 65™ & W, 11771 RTS
GENERATORS IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $166,924 .00 (RTA CAPITAL
FUNL), ENGINEERING & PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) deems it
necessary to acquire construction services, as specified, under Project 19.33 — W. 65" & W,
117" RTS Generators; and

WHEREAS, the proposal of NEQ Building Construction, LLC, located at 34910 Avon
Commerce Pkwy, Suite C, Avon, Ohio, 44011, was received on April 20, 2023 in an amount not
to exceed $166,924.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of NEO
Building Construction, LLC to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees,

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of NEO Building Construction, LLC for Project 19.33 - W. 85 &
W. 117" RTS Generators, be and the same is hereby accepted.

section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Exacutive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with NEQ Building Construction, LLC for
Project 19.33 — W. 65" & W, 117" RTS Generators,

Section 3. That this contract shall be payable from the RTA Capital Fund, Engineering &
Froject Development Department budget, inciuding but not limited to 100% local funds, in an
armourtt not to exceed $166,924 .00,

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and Addenda, if any; the
Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and insurance requirements
and all applicable laws reiating to contractual obligations of the Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that NEO Building Construction, LLC will attempt to exceed the 10% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: June 27, 2023

Prasident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100~ Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22 . S
TILE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution Na.:
2023-44
ENACTING CHAPTER 1210 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND Date:

REGULATIONS OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT | jine 22 2023

AUTHORITY

Initiator:

Administration &
External Affairs

ACTION REQUEST:

X Approval i Review/Comment [ Information Only (1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0
7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will enact Chapter 1210 of the Codified Rules and
Regutations (“*Code Book™) of the Greater Claveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority™).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Policies and Procedures of the Board of Trustees
were codified in 1989, pursuant to Resolution 1989-176.

In accordance with the Authority’s mission of “Connecting the Community” and a desire to
present a more community-criented image to the public, the Authority needs to adopt an
advertising policy that provides guidance for the types of advertising permitted on Authority
property. The proposed policy encourages a safe and welcoming environment for
passengers and members of the community, and it provides guidelines for managing
advertising on Authority property, i also authorizes the General Manager, Chief Executive
Officer to adopt administrative procedures to implement this policy.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: Adoption of the resolution will create an advertising policy that is
consistent with the Authority's mission, brand and public image that the Authority intends to
present.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Does not apply.

ALTERNATIVES: Notf adopting this resolution. Not adopting this resolution would leave the
Authority without an advertising policy to provide guidance for managing advertising on
Authority property.

RECOMMENDATION: This resolution was discussed at the June 6, 2023 Committee of the
Whole meeting and recommended for consideration by the full Board of Trustees, Htis
recommended that this resolution be adoptsd.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with
the Procurement requirements,

0
»r:'f/ P -

A
"/General Manager, ChiefExgcutifé Officer




RESOLUTION NO, 2023-44

ENACTING CHAPTER 1210 OF THE CODIFIED RULES AND REGULATIONS
OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resclution No. 1989-176, the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) codified the resolutions establishing its
policies and proceduras; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has conducted a review and determined that new Chapter
1210 Advertising Policy should be adopted to promote the Authority’s brand and mission of
"Connecting the Community;” and

WHEREAS, the proposed advertising policy will provide guidance for managing
advertising on Authority property, including audio and digital spaces.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohig;

Section 1. That Chapter 1210 of the Codified Rules and Regulations of the Greater
Clevetand Regional Transit Autherity ("Code Book”) is hereby enacted to read as specified
in Attachment A hereto,

Section 2. That the Board of Trustees hereby waives the fourteen-day period provided
for in Article XI, Section 2 of the Bylaws.

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immeadiately upon its adoption.

Attachment. A. Chapter 1210 Advertising Policy

Adopted: June 27, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Attachment A to Besolution

CHAPTER 1210
Advertising Policy

1210.01 Advertising on Authority Property

1210.01 ADVERTISING ON AUTHORITY PROPERTY.

(a) The Authority seeks to support a healthy and vibrant commumty through
its brand and advertising. The Authority intends to maintain a safe and welcoming
environment for all Authority passengers and members of the communtity, including
minors, without regard to race, color, marital status, sexual orientation, religion,
national origin, ancestry, age, sex, gender identity, disability, medical condition, or
military status.

(b) The Authority will maintain a professional advertising environment in all
advertising spaces, including physical, audio and digital spaces, and manage the
advertising program in a manner that will ensure that advertising: (1) does not
discourage the use of or disrupt the operation of the transit system, (2) does not
diminish the Authority's reputation in the community or the goodwill of its
passengers, (3) does not express an opinion, that might be attributed to the
Authority, regarding political, religious or other 1ssues that are the subject of public
debate, (4) protects passengers, bystanders, employees, vehicles, facilities, and other
equipment from physical harm, (5) aids the Authority in retaining current and
building new transit ridership, and (6) 1s consistent with its Mission.

(c) The Authority’s advertising space is a non-public forum, which means that
it has not been traditionally open to speech and debate in the same manner as
public parks and city streets have been.

(d} The Authority will permit the following types of advertising: (1)
commercial advertising; (2) advertising related to the Authority's transit operations;
(3) paid or unpaid public service announcements and (4) paid political advertising.

(e) The Authority will not permit the following types of advertising: (1)
advertising that contains material that discriminates on the basis of race, color,
marital status, sexual orientation, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, sex,
gender identity, disability, medical condition, or military status; (2) alcohol,
marijuana, tobacco products and related products and services; (3) profanity; (4)
violence; (5) unlawful goods, services or conduct; (6) sexual activity, products or
sexually-oriented services; (7) firearms; (8) gambling; (9) unauthorized
endorsements; (10) false, misleading, libelous or deceptive advertising; (11)
copyright infringements, trademark violations or otherwise unlawful advertising;
(12) advertising tending to impede transit safety or disrupt traffic; (13) unclear
identification of the advertiser; and (14) unpaid advertising.



Attachment A to Resolution

() The Authority will determine the interior and exterior spaces that will
serve as appropriate locations for all advertising. The Authority reserves the right
to modify, change, or alter the locations and sizes of the available advertisement
spaces. The placement and size of any advertisement shall be at the sole discretion

of the Authority.

(g) The Authority may, at the sole discretion of the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer, cause to be removed any advertising that does not conform to this
Policy.

(h) The General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to issue and
amend procedures to implement this policy without further approval of the Board of
Trustees.



Greater Cleveland interaffice Memo
Regional Transit Authority

To: Rev. Charles P. Lucas, President
and Members, Board of Trustees

From: India L. Birdsong Terry

General Manager, Chief Executive Officer
Date: June 22, 2023
Subject: Grant Resolutions

At the June 27, 2023 Board Meeting the Board will be asked to act on two resolutions
authorizing GCRTA to apply for grants with the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT)
and the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency (NOACA). We are required by
ODOT to issue a resolution annually and NOACA requires a resolution every three years.

Please contact me at 216-3566-3100 if you have questions or require additional information prior
to Tuesday's meeting.

ILB:cw



Form 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS
01-12-22

TITLE/DESCRIPTION:

Resalution No.:

FILING OF GRANT APPLICATIONS, FURNISHING OF ADDITIONAL 202345
INFORMATION AND ACCEPTING FUNDS FROM THE STATE OF OHIO Date-
FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2024 EINANCIAL ASSISTANCE June 22 2023

Initiator: Finance

ACTION REQUEST;

Approval 11 Review/Comment £ Information Only (1 Other

1.0

2.0

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

PURPOSE/SCOPRE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regionatl Transit Autharity
("GCRTA") to submit grant applications to enter into funding agreements with, and to accept
funds from, the State of Ohio for eligible transit projects. This resolution is for the State Fiscal
Year ("SFY") 2024, which is July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024,

DESCRIPTIONAUSTIFICATION: The State of Ohio wilt make funds avaifable during SFY2024
under various programs. GCRTA will apply for financial assistance from the State of Ohio for

gligible transit projects.

State of Ohie financial assistance programs includa, but are not limited to:

ODOT Urban Transit Program (UTP)

ODOT Discretionary Capital Pragram

QDOT Ohio Transit Partnership Program (OTFP)
ODOT Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (OEPA)
ODOT Ohio Workforee Mobility Partnership Program

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

POLICY IMPACT: This action is consistent with Section 460.04(d) of the Codified Rules and
Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, which establishes GCRTA's
palicy to take advantage of all available state and federal grant programs, including State of Ohio
Uriban Transit Program grants and Federal Mighway Administration programs, as well as the
programs of the Federal Transit Administration.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: Funding available through the State of Ohio may be up to 80%-100%
of the total project cost.

ALTERNATIVES: Do not submit grant applications. This woutd exclude the Authority from
utitizing funding available through the State of Ohio to the Cleveland Urbanized Area for
transportation improvemeants.

RECOMMENDATION: ltis recommended that the resolution authorizing the filing of grant
applications, furnishing of additional information and accepting funds from the State of Ohio be
approved.

ATTACHMENT: None

Recommended and cerified as appropriate to the availability of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

o

G:a/vleral Manager, Chief Execﬁ%a‘(ﬁﬁk@ﬂ




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-45

AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF GRANT APPLICATIONS, FURNISHING OF
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND ACCEPTING FUNDS FROM THE STATE OF
OHIO FOR STATE FISCAL YEAR 2024 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE UNDER ALL
STATE OF OHIO PROGRAMS

WHEREAS, the State of Ohio, through its State Fiscal Year ("SFY") 2024 financial
assistance programs, will make funds available to assist public transportation systems in Ohio: and

WHEREAS, the Greater Clevetand Regional Transit Authority is the primary transit provider
in Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is providing transit service and
observing all federal and state rules under all State of Ohio programs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Kegional Transit Authority:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is haeraby authorized {o file
grant applications, as required, and to execute contracts on behalf of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority with the State of Ohlo for financial assistance (including by transfer of
highway funds} under all State of Ohio programs.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute and
file such grant applications and provide assurances or any other documentation required by the
State of Ohio for the financial assistance programs.

Section 3. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority is authorized to accept funds offered by State of Ohio financial assistance
programs.

Section 4. That, in the absence of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, the Acting
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Claveland Regional Transit Authority is
hereby authorized to perform any and all of the above-described functions.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: June 27, 2023

FPresident

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



Forrm 100- Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority

326 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

01-12-22
TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF GRANT APPLICATIONS, ENTERING 2023-46
INTO FUNDING AGREEMENTS, PROVIDING ASSURANCES OR OTHER Date:
DOCUMENTATION AND ACCEPTING FUNDS FROM NOACA FOR STATE' June 22 2023
FISCAL YEARS 2024, 2025 AND 2026 FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND e ———
CAPITAL PROJECTS UNDER ALL NOACA PROGRAMS Initiator: Finance

ACTION REQUEST:
Approval {1 Review/Comment [1 tnformation Only 0 Other

1.0  PURPOSE/BCOPE: This action will allow the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("GCRTA")
to submit grant applications, to enter into funding agreements with, to provide assurances or other
documeantation, and to accept funds from the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency
{"NOACA") for eligible transit projects under all NOACA programs. This resolution s for State Fiscal
Year ("SFY") 2024, 2025, and 2026 which will run from July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2026,

2.0 DESCRIPTIONMJUSTIFICATION: NOACA will administer and make funds available during
SFY 2024, 2025, and 2026 under various programs. GCRTA will apply for financial assistance
and capital project funding from NOACA for eligible transit projects and programs.

NOACA administered financial assistance and capital project programs include, but are not limited to:

ODOT Urban Transit Program (UTP)

ODOT Discretionary Capital Program

GDOT Ohio Transit Partnership Program (OTPP)
CODOT Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (OEPA)
ODOT Chio Workforce Mobility Partnership Program
STBG Surface Transportation Block Grant Program
TLCI Transportation for Livable Communities Initiative
CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Does not apply.
4.0  AFFIRMATIVE ACTION / DBE BACKGROUND: Does not apply.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: This action is consistent with the policy stated at Section 460.04(d) of the Codified
Rules and Requlations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority to take advantage of all
available state and federal grant programs, including State of Ohio Lirban Transit Program grants and
Federal Highway Administration programs, as well as the programs of the Federal Transit
Administration,

6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: Funding available through the State of Ohio may be up to B0%-100%
of the total project cost.

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Do not submit grant applications. This would exclude the Authority from
utilizing funding avaitable through NOACA to the Cleveland Urbanized Area for transporiation
improvements.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: [tis recommended that the resolution authorizing the submission of grant
applications, entering into funding agreements, providing assurances or other documentation, and
accepting funds for financial assistance from NOACA be approved,

80 ATTACHMENT: Neone

Recommended and centified as appropriate to the avaitability of
funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement requirements.

e -

ﬁf:’:“"f o M:w,_‘.-ﬂ e ll‘.“_,,.a—“' ....... —
e f“\,—‘“"“%,w’
Gséneral Manaaer. Chief Exeéutive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-46

AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF GRANT APPLICATIONS, ENTERING INTO
FUNDING AGREEMENTS, PROVIDING ASSURANCES QR OTHER
DOCUMENTATION AND ACCEPTING FUNDS FROM NOACA FOR STATE FISCAL
YEARS 2024, 2025 AND 2026 FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND CAPITAL
PROJECTS UNDER ALL NOACA PROGRAMS

WHEREAS, the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency (“NOACA") through its State
Fiscal Year ("SFY™) 2024, 2025 and 2026 financial assistance and capital project programs will administer
and make funds available for public agencies and public transit systems; and

WHEREAS, the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“GCRTA™) is the primary transit
operator in Cuyahoga County; and

WHEREAS, GCRTA is a federally designated funding recipient; and

WHEREAS, the GCRTA is providing transit service, implementing a capital prograrm, and
observing all federal and state rules regarding these programs.

NOW, THEREFQRE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater Claveland
Regional Transit Authority:

Section 1. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to file grant
applications, as required, and {0 execute contracts on behalf of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit
Authority with the Northeast Ohio Areawide Coordinating Agency ("NOACA") for financial assistance and
capital project programs (including transfer of highway funds) under all NOACA programs.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to exacute and file
such grant applications, any assurances or any other documentation required by NOACA under the
financial assistance and caphtal project programs.

Seaction 3. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is authorized to furnish such
additional information as NOACA may require in connection with these applications.

Section 4. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is willing to provide the local
match amount for any grant awarded to it by NOACA for SFY 2024, 2025, and 2026,

Saction 5. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer is autharized to accept the funds
resulting from the NOACA financial assistance and capital programs.

Section 6. That, in the absence of the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer, the Acting
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority is hereby
authorized to perform any and all of the above-described functions.

Section 7. That this resolution shatt become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adaopted: June 27, 2023

President

Attest;

Secretary-Treasurer



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-47

AMENDING AND RESTATING EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT OF INDIA L.
BIRDSONG TERRY AS GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
OF THE GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THAT AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, on August 20, 2018, the Board of Trustees ("Board") of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority ("Authority”) adopted Resolution No. 2019-94, authorizing
the appointment of India L. Birdsong to the position of General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

for the Authority, and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2019-94, the Authority entered into an
employment contract with India L. Birdsong, now known as India L. Birdsong Terry (“Terry”} with
a term of five (5) years, beginning September 16, 2019, and expiring on September 16, 2024
(the “Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Board for the Authority desires to continue its employment relationship
with Terry in the position of General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority and Terry desire to amend and restate the Agreement fo
provide an exiension thereof under the terms and conditions stated therein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Autharity, Cuyahoga County, Ohio.

Section 1. That the Board of Trustees ("Board™) of the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Autharity ("Authority”) and india L. Birdsong Terry (“Terry") hereby amend and restate the
current Employment Agreement between the Authority and Terry, to be effective as of January 1,
2023 and expiring on December 31, 2027, in accordance with the terms of the Amended and
Restated Employment Agreement attached hereto.

Section 2. That the President of the Board is hereby authorized and directed to execute
the attached Amended and Restated Employment Agreement on behalf of the Authority,

Section 3. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.
Attachment. Amended and Restated Employment Agreement of India L. Birdsong Terry, the

General Manager and Chief Executive Officer for the Greater Cleveland Regional
Transit Authority.

Adopted: June 27, 2023

President

Attest:

Secretary-Treasurer



ATTACHMENT A
AMENDED AND RESTATED
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
FOR THE
GENERAL MANAGER
OF THE
GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY

This Amended and Restated Employment Agreement (‘“Agreement”) is entered into by and
between the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority (“Authority”) located at 1240 West 6th
Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, and India L. Birdsong Terry, who is currently performing the duties
and responsibilities of General Manager and Chief Executive Officer of the Authority (“General
Manager”), pursuant to the authorization contained in Resolution No. 2023-47 of the Authority’s
Board of Trustees (“Board”) duly adopted on June  , 2023, (““Adoption Date™) in accordance
with the provisions of Ohio Revised Code Section 306.34 and the Bylaws of the Authority.

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to enter into this Agreement with India L. Birdsong
Terry as General Manager, and India L. Birdsong Terry desires to continue employment by the
Authority as its General Manager for five (5) years, effective as of January 1, 2023 and continuing

through December 31, 2027, under the terms and conditions set forth herein.

WITNESSETH:

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the parties
agree as follows:

1. Term of Agreement. The Authority desires to continue to employ the General
Manager as an officer of the Authority under the relevant provisions of Ohio law and the
Authority’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures for a term of five (5) years commencing on January

1,2023 (the “Commencement Date”), and expiring on December 31, 2027 (the “Expiration Date™).



The General Manager hereby accepts said employment and agrees to perform the duties of General
Manager on behalf of the Authority throughout the duration of this Agreement as prescribed by
the laws of the State of Ohio, by the Authority’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures, and by the
directives of the Authority’s Board. The General Manager shall be classified as a salaried, non-
bargaining exempt employee of the Authority. Unless terminated as provided for in Sections 5.1,
5.2 or 5.3 herein, if at least six (6) months prior to the expiration of the five (5) year term of this
Agreement and any subsequent one (1) year renewal term, the Authority or General Manager has
not notified the other in writing that it/she does not intend to renew this Agreement, the term of
the Agreement shall automatically be renewed and extended for one (1) calendar year under the
same terms and conditions.

2. Regular Salary. In consideration of the services to be performed hereunder by the
General Manager, the Authority shall pay the General Manager $335,000 per calendar year (the
“Regular Salary”) effective as of January 1, 2023. General Manager shall receive the difference
in the salary she earned in 2023 up to the Adoption Date and the Regular Salary provided for in
this Agreement on or before 30 days following the Board’s approval of this Agreement in one
lump sum payment of Regular Salary (net of all usual and customary tax or other withholding
amounts). In addition, the General Manager shall receive the annual average base salary merit
increase (“Merit Pool”) the Board may establish for the Authority’s non-bargaining unit employees
beginning as of the 2024 calendar year and each calendar year thereafter during the term of the
Agreement. This Regular Salary shall be paid in periodic installments in the usual and customary
intervals applicable to payment of other executive level managers of the Authority, as may be in
effect from time to time. The General Manager’s Regular Salary may be increased (but not

decreased) in an amount determined in the sole discretion of the Board. Should the General



Manager’s employment be terminated in accordance with Section 5.3 of this Agreement by the
Board, the General Manager shall not be entitled to any Regular Salary for the remaining portion
of the term of this Agreement, nor payment of a Performance Bonus under Section 7 of this
Agreement. Any adjustment to the General Manager’s Regular Salary made during the term of this
Agreement shall be in the form of a written amendment hereto and shall become a part of this
Agreement; provided, however, that by so doing it shall not be deemed that the Authority has
entered into a new agreement with the General Manager, nor that the Expiration Date of this
Agreement has been extended.

At any point within eighteen (18) months prior to the expiration of this Agreement, the
General Manager may request a meeting with the Board to discuss her contract status. Upon such
request, the Board shall grant the General Manager a meeting in executive session to discuss
potential reasons for considering extension, renewal or nonrenewal of this Agreement. The
establishment of this meeting shall not create an expectancy of continued employment; nor shall
it prevent the Board from making the final determination regarding the extension, renewal or
failure to renew of the General Manager’s contract consistent with this Agreement.

3. Benefits. During the term of the General Manager’s employment by the Authority
and except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the General Manager shall be
entitled to the benefits of employment set forth in the Authority’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures
for the Authority’s executive level managers, which may include the Authority’s usual and
customary employer’s contribution toward healthcare insurance premiums, (medical, prescription
drug, dental, and/or vision insurance coverages as applicable); the employer’s contribution toward
term life insurance premiums; paid leaves (sick, personal and/or vacation); accumulation of and

payment for unused sick time credit at the time of retirement (if any); accumulation of and payment



for unused vacation leave upon separation from employment (if any); the definition of accrual or
accumulate for the purposes of any such payments (if any); paid legal holidays; and the
reimbursement of reasonable business expenses incurred by the General Manager and that are
authorized in advance by the Board. The Authority shall not pay the General Manager's
contribution to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System nor the General Manager's
Medicare tax notwithstanding any provision of the Authority’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures
to the contrary. The Authority shall make all employer contributions, including the fourteen
percent (14%) OPERS Employer contribution on behalf of General Manager’s OPERS, in addition
to any other benefit contributions the Authority makes to other executive level managers of the
Authority. The Authority shall not make any contribution on behalf of the General Manager to the
Ohio Public Employees Deferred Compensation Program, although the General Manager is free
to participate in this Program.

General Manager shall receive reimbursement for costs (including deductibles, co-pays
and parking expenses) of a yearly executive health evaluation at the Cleveland Clinic up to a cap
of $3,500 per year for any amounts not covered by the General Manager’s health insurance with
the Authority. General Manager shall not receive a car allowance, although she will be entitled to
use an Authority vehicle as needed for official business. In the event that General Manager is
unable to use an Authority vehicle for Authority business, she may use her personal vehicle for
Authority business and shall be reimbursed for the use of her personal vehicle in the same manner
as afforded other employees using personal vehicles for Authority business. The Authority
encourages General Manager as part of her regular duties to become a member of local business
and community organizations relating to the activities of the Authority, and it will pay for said

memberships and out of pocket expenses as approved by the Board or its designee in an amount



not to exceed $3,000.00 annually, unless otherwise agreed to by the Board in its sole discretion.
In addition, the Authority will reimburse General Manager for Board approved certifications,
seminars and course work in accordance with its established policies and procedures.

4. Vacation and Sick Time Credit. During the term of this Agreement, the Authority
grants the General Manager two hundred (200) hours of vacation per calendar year or prorated for
a portion thereof, which shall not be supplemented or increased by any other Per Pay Vacation
Rate Schedule provided in the Policies and Procedures of the Authority. The grant, accrual, use,
carryover and payment, if any, of unused vacation time shall be subject to the terms and conditions
of the Authority’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures. General Manager’s accrual of additional sick
time credit shall be in accordance with the Authority’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures.

5. Termination of Agreement.

5.1 Termination by Notice. Except as otherwise provided in Section 5.2 or

Section 5.3, this Agreement may be terminated by either the Authority or the General Manager, at
either Party’s discretion or convenience, upon the expiration of sixty (60) days after written notice
by certified United States mail is received by the Authority, or personally delivered by the
terminating Party to the other Party. The Authority shall have the sole discretion to determine
whether the General Manager shall continue to render services hereunder during such notice
period, subject to the Authority’s severance pay obligation to the General Manager under Section
6 below.

For any termination under this Section 5.1 by the General Manager, the General Manager
shall not receive any Regular Salary after the effective date of termination; provided however, if
the termination date is after March 31%, the General Manager may receive a prorated amount of

her yearly Performance Bonus as determined by the Authority’s Board in its sole discretion. For



purposes of this Section 5.1 only, “effective date of termination” shall mean sixty (60) days
following the notice of termination by either party.

5.2 Termination Upon General Manager’s Death. Notwithstanding Section 5.1

or any other provision herein, this Agreement shall terminate automatically, immediately and
without prior notice upon the General Manager’s death. The Authority shall pay the yearly
premium for a supplemental life insurance policy offered by the Authority to its employees in the
amount of $300,000 on the General Manager’s behalf. The General Manager shall designate the
beneficiary of this life insurance policy.

53 Termination for Cause. This Agreement may be terminated at any time upon

thirty (30) days written notice by the Authority for just cause, which shall include, but not be
limited to, the General Manager’s: (i) fraud or dishonesty pertaining to her employment with the
Authority or which impairs her ability to perform the responsibilities of General Manager, (i1) theft
of Authority assets, (iii) conviction of a crime involving moral turpitude, (iv) material violation of
the terms of this Agreement, or (v) intentional gross failure to properly perform or discharge the
duties of General Manager as established by the Authority’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures or
directives of the Board following ten (10) days’ notice and thirty (30) days to cure said
performance deficiencies. Upon a termination for cause by the Authority, the General Manager
shall not be entitled to any additional Regular Salary provided in Section 2 above, as of the
effective date of the termination, or any portion of the Performance Bonus provided for in Section
7 below.

6. Severance Pay. If the General Manager’s employment is terminated by the
Authority for its convenience in accordance with Section 5.1 above, the Authority shall pay the

General Manager severance compensation for a one (1) year period as follows: for the first six (6)



month period, the General Manager’s Regular Salary in effect at the time of such termination,
regardless whether the General Manager accepts another position during this period (including the
payment of the amount necessary for COBRA health benefit coverage during all or part of this six
(6) month period until General Manager qualifies for replacement health insurance offered by any
new employer); and provided further, in the next six (6) month period if any new position accepted
by the General Manager after the termination pays a salary less than the Regular Salary paid by
the Authority to the General Manager at the time of termination, the Authority shall pay the
difference between the two salaries to General Manager for the second six (6) month period, and
the amount of the premium for COBRA health insurance coverage during all or a portion of the
second six (6) month period until General Manager qualifies for replacement health insurance
with the new employer during the second six (6) month period.

If General Manager’s employment is terminated for cause by the Authority in accordance
with Section 5.3 above, the Authority may, but is not required to, offer the General Manager
severance pay equivalent to two (2) months of Regular Salary. Any severance pay associated with
a termination of employment by the Authority under Section 5.3 above shall be contingent upon
the General Manager’s execution of a complete and unconditional waiver and release of claims
satisfactory to the Authority.

7. Performance Review and Bonus. Annual performance objectives for the General
Manager for each calendar year of this Agreement shall be established and mutually agreed to by
the Board and General Manager prior to December 31% of each preceding calendar year. The
General Manager’s annual written performance review by the Board for the previous calendar year
shall be completed by March 31% to determine whether the General Manager is entitled to a

Performance Bonus. The Board may decide in its sole discretion to pay the General Manager up



to 15% of her Regular Salary as a yearly Performance Bonus. Any Performance Bonus granted
by the Board to General Manager based upon its annual performance review will be paid by April
30" of that year. Further, the Board shall provide General Manager with her performance review
for 2022 by June 30, 2023.

8. Duties and Responsibilities of General Manager. The General Manager shall
devote her best business and professional skills, knowledge, and experience to the lawful business
affairs of the Authority. In all events, the General Manager shall expend the time and effort
necessary to fulfill her duties and responsibilities pursuant to this Agreement on a full time basis,
and shall use all reasonable efforts to perform the duties and responsibilities as the General
Manager. The General Manager shall not assume any other employment, consulting or
compensated work relationship with any other person or entity beside the Authority during the
term of this Agreement. The duties and responsibilities of the General Manager are set forth in the
Bylaws, Policies and Procedures of the Authority, and the Board’s directives to the General
Manager as they may be adopted or amended from time to time by the Board. The General
Manager shall faithfully, honestly, and diligently perform the obligations under this Agreement
and shall exert best efforts to promote and enhance the efficient operation and functioning of the
Authority in accordance with the Authority’s Bylaws, Policies and Procedures and the Board’s
directives.

9. Confidential Information. The General Manager is privy to certain data and
information that is confidential and proprietary to the Authority or its employees. The General
Manager agrees that all information furnished or disclosed to the General Manager by the
Authority or any of its employees (as well as work product developed by the General Manager

during the term of this Agreement) shall be property of the Authority, shall be maintained in



confidence by the General Manager and shall not be disclosed to any person or entity or used by
the General Manager in any way, except as specifically authorized by the Authority. Nothing in
the foregoing sentences of this Section 9 is meant to preclude disclosure of information as required
by federal, state or local law. The General Manager’s obligation to protect the confidentiality of
Authority information shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. The General
Manager further agrees that, at the termination of this Agreement, all data, documents, property
and other information received from the Authority or that was used by the General Manager during
the term of this Agreement will be immediately returned and no copies thereof shall be retained
by the General Manager.

10. Defense of Actions. The Authority shall defend, indemnify and hold the General
Manager harmless from and against any court actions or lawsuits against the General Manager
(including the costs and expenses of defending against such actions and liabilities arising
therefrom) for any action taken during the normal performance of duties and responsibilities of the
General Manager in accordance with the Bylaws, Policies and Procedures of the Authority, and
the applicable provisions of Ohio Revised Code Chapter 2744.

11. Savings Clause. Should any provision of this Agreement be found illegal, void, or
voidable, the remainder of the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

12. Entire Agreement. This instrument contains the entire agreement of the parties; it
may not be changed orally but only by an agreement in writing signed by the parties.

13. Miscellaneous. The recitals are hereby incorporated in the Agreement as if fully
rewritten herein. To the extent that any Bylaw, Policy or Procedure of the Authority grants to the
General Manager the authorization to make a discretionary decision concerning any employment-

related conduct, or a change in compensation or employment benefits for an employee of the



Authority, the General Manager shall not exercise such power to specifically benefit herself unless
and until such conduct, change or increase is approved by the Board.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, by its
Board President having been duly authorized, and India L. Birdsong Terry have set their hands
hereto on the dates stated below.

GREATER CLEVELAND REGIONAL
TRANSIT AUTHORITY

By:

Rev. Charles P. Lucas, Board President

Date: June , 2023

India L. Birdsong Terry
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

Date: June , 2023

10



7 0 7 aled lsoday anuasay

BAEOHT [ G] IEESBI0RL § LEOOSEELET §  SOMDNEEIL § o0 Daf WElAE ZA9°LAGT §  IE'medmR LT F TN TFHINID - FAA0TH H5YD IWEDL

EPNFI-BE RO FIITERD AtAdAsy

S [T T4 ¥BE ) Si6'vEZ"ER T HETE - CELLES TES'BTL e HEEID 0 SIS IR0 OKY FINTNISHOEMITH TrL0LENS
w00 - - - - [T - - - - ARZWISZNEAMITY E20 WE2LE10M, - IRQI9A QLADD
wOO'n - ITITH'EET'TR] TTPEBE'T2 - g - - - - A THIOE
w00 - - - - o] - - - - s Tyda03d
WD - - - - L% - - - - 2% 534990 TrHInad
5D [05 353 3554341 SOP'E0'T ELSER HBED - FSL'EFT LOTER 158'167 S LT3R SraanyTI130s1n
SEU - oT5'TE - O7ESE HIED - FIL'E - piT'E EINTESSST SHILTIA0 TryIaas
w5 - POE'EST - +HIEEAT HR1E0 - BOG'ESY . bOS'EST [HILYWE 19007 "TURLS WHICA] IDNTNIALNA NN
R - FEL'T FSTpE BIET5 A - iega'e] LESL - [sruiese 0302 ALRLS ForaG ] LAAWISUNANEY LD
HOED RIAE EED'TE 525'805 BIFGHE BIET - B55'BOE BRT. 09 A¥E'53E SORMNFTE XL IOk 1303

TSP A0 ST BRHID OGS LR35 BTG G

%55T 5 ET] EC59'SEEd BN TRET BLLISE'T Il fwndth {Beb'cEl QER'IST TEE'THE NGNS BEHED TRADLENS
%214 Hab el (5 TSI J<EETH aen (%LTEE) {rEp'a) 25T PR0ET HIHLD
H5FD - ELTERY A20°80T OGT'GbS HEED L 34 aya'et ObESS aFTHL RCo L33
451 |%26°T] 11150 AT RIS T #iTo Kbl ££9 PSLFE EE+'52 IMCDIK TeLMIE
HSTD Lseavet [Teeaedl BTE'LEY 2real =*IT0 - - - - SHOISSIMINGS 5537 SLHESH BallNY
SELD 1%2E TR [esg'Tasl tse'Ese'T 69536 %3ilo [x60re8) (EpgiaE] 25575 SSE'EL SHOREAIN OO SHCISSIINOFDNISIE TACY

FANEATE YR

WED' IR HOTL DEE'TLEL FER'ETTOL SST"9ET ART ISR Higd BS0EEET THSELTET HET'ZEE'SE SHASANS BUIEYHEA0 TFI0LENS
BT LE SOTY QES'TLT'L LZE'ECOTLT E1"e5T 20T HETCR T HS0'ETTT TBSELTET [T WL 350 A 537w

HHIGEEAT SNUTEIA0

E L HBEFT ASTHOT 165 BEROT EP9TLTEOT 6T HEETI B¥ERST TEGOTT E51veSE $36Y HETMISSYS TEDEANS
*ALT WAT BT L1REEDY LOTLETY vIEOTSE RETT BAL'G ASFHL E50'GiT LSEVAY SHLEITHOLL TGO
HEET i%2997] [SEEFaw) QLE"Th2'T LSS'BVE'T %IIT w3l Lk 14 DOaTPE SITHIS 5549d-N
%510 Lo pe) lsrenag) TEESI BLE'E0E wE1E HITER ful: ] FE0'ST 15T SErI3AYS INGAN:S
HOEE RETT 2 #4543 BTHFOELT A 'EFR'E SILT [=etwl |12 =T L0405+ TITEIS S35 EFADLLISEN
HOEE %8531 965 "THE $  ILFWETE 5 BN 3 wwdE ®EE0T TALER 3 IMA'TAL 5 EBESIE 3 SIHW S HEWY

ExFrFECTER

Wk 40 % ATNTHIH EE L) A Aia TLOLF0 % LIRS AGMYHD HIKHA HIROW
INTFEND ot EI0T ANZWHIY TR Ta P AMFEHNS

TTOT "TE AV ONV EZ0T 'IE AVIN QIGNT QONId IHE O
QMM TYEINID - UYL HOHEG O QIHVEINOT GINEITH HSVD 40 1H0dT3E
ALPSOHENY LSNYEL IWNOIDIY GNTEIATID HALVEES 3H)L




7 401 28y LIOCSY anuanay

WO G 'y FRETPES S SEPOBE'EET §  TOELETRIT 5 HO0'GAY HOT'L ERT'0ES'T R TN T A T~ ONEE THaINID - QIARIIE HSVD TWLI0]

55 NIRLGETARYLS Srkian

%*9gT HITHS LLL'SER b5 FE T HIE'SAET WBT'E HEQ LT SIT°9eS SAT kL S 0EE HEWD 40 5ITUNOS EIHED ONY SINTINISHAHNEEY THLOEAS
HOZD - - - - 0 - - - - LRFNILEMBAITY BT NESLST0NL - INEIOA GG
=] - - - - MO - - - - oHY YoICa
BT - - - - HHFD - - - - ST FordIca s
R - - - - BIFO - - - - LO% S3HYD TryIcas
SZED 5105t [espiog PEFSED LETEEs k] 56 T9RTY T3RTST D330ET 5L SHOdrer T3S IV
®EOD - OZE'TE OZETE - AIF0 - BEL'E rELE - INTESISEY DALY &340 TeIGES
wgin - HIE'ERT HETET - %IAD - OG'ERT FOB'E2T - THOLTUA TR0 SLYIS Tvua03H) I3 NEINPOW IeINFATHS
Wl - SLEOBLr A6 AT GIE0RT wHED - oozl - DHI0T AHILYIN 100 E001S Tv305) INZNASENSNITH LRTES
SOB wEA1E BLEER BLEAE 0IC05L WIAT - SrT'ELE FI'RYE COTE FANNS3E XYL IMEwdCHe/ ORI

VD #0 STIHI0s BTG O TSRS

PAp0a BIEH - <Hy ey TZ0T ORI ZHIE

%E5'T [CLE o] 106" 7RL] EESHET FhLER'T %79 {555+l RELPERT] TSE'THY TER'tSE FNNINTS HIHLD IWioUENS
HIT': 1%L B 1EEEETE) TG DDA e FET ] [EI T FE0'ET COTBES d3ken
RS - CET'E5E CHT'EEG COFOSE HSED = 1 4EE'eE JER'HL 200 ARSI ESIHAENI
KET) SHELHE COS'EE CO5'ETT eafr] SIS HLTrD EE+'S EET'ST a0a'eT MO THANTY
®5T4 iaerae] {InT's0T BZLC'TBE BT SO0 . - - - SHOBSIFGI0D 5731 SLFDIE TN
*ELD [EACR ] 2Tt SBA'ESS STH'GEY'T %114 [%1=95) ArEE] SSE'EZ TER'tS SETSSINFECIP S NOISS IS LY an Ty

AFINIAIY BFHID

RETE WIT'S ECE'LHT'S BETSSIE0T SE8'206° 701 HIL5E HELF SEE'SER BES'TRE BE +13'505'8T SROSHAS ONLTHIH0 IFEDEANS
H5Y LR HETS E2E L8E's R53'361 'A0T SE2'HOS'IOT HITSH HELE 41558 GEXTREET +IR'30S'T FWL 354 T EFINS

IR BNS TN FEId

HSEE [XB6'H [9¥s' stk AU LTE O 56T ST0'TE HES'GT HETE TELGIE EETPOE'T SIV'PELT S34vS HFORAESY d TV LOEEMS
%80T [ [3esLs) FEET Y SETRES'T HELYE [ {zarsrT) P ST PES SMILIEILE TN
60T WIT'ED A2 193 ZESIPET DROOET'T E5 - SISk STE7v05 odeas e ]
=BT lmEewst Izzeazt] LT QHIEET HHE0 - ¥IS'TE FESTT 03501 SOUYIEHY |NIAnLS
SOET 1%L sth 1r5a7ass) APETERET QA TEE BILT Iswezzt ISERTHTY TR DIGTE LERELNE TR
SHOEE RET'ET 2907 5 Sy 5 DOCCA%E 5 %HEE ®IHE ESE'SE 5 EBETLA £ 0X00R % S3HYS HSYD

EYEVT HTONF550d

BLOL 30 R AN WTHTNK FINTIEY alk JAEAEE Tk TAEOL 40 % ERI ) ERTIE T FELNOE FELN
ANFHET £HE =it 4 AT ANIHERD NEL )y

£TOT "TE AWIN GIGNT Q0 IHId FHE YO
QNN TWEINID - 1350NY OL QINVINOT JIREITYE H5YD) 40 L0433
ALIHOHLNY 11$NYH1 TYNOIDIH GHVIIATID H3LWID 2H1




HLE'E

%FLG

%igS

HBEY

WLy

et

HONVTIHYA

WEZS
Sl
S5k L
ey
Yl
%ELE

I5NYHD

183 % aAlh % ObA 20

£Zag

SNSHIAA £202

LEETERTTOELE
BSL9ELT0LE
BLEEGREES
17E'PES09%
LS SIYERS
ZeS' L9512
LSV

QL&
£E0E

LLIEEFEIOELS
EOH'GE6'SELS ZEEEOLETIE  ZROSEETLLS {905 gL T | £1T'4r0'22s
CEE'SOE'ICIS 22g'E0 1oL SiWEIELSS RELY nidg GED'ZEE'GLE
SLG'E0F POS ST e TEE ZER'BFEELS REFL WBEE LIG'E0E'OES
SIE'BAS'S5E ZZE'PIE'PRE  0SHSSLAGE %EE G Flt L PEE'EHS EEE
SES'BEC 3 ¥S LELEFS'OFE  E00EBE5ES HlB g G SOB' ISP 1 EE
TAOCAC LTS JSLFRE'DES  PGADESRS HSEL WHLE TeS'IPS TS
JLYIES3 ALY LY JEVINELST FANYHD THALDY
QLA ali QLA ATHLNOW €202 % HENOW £ZHE
LT Z20Z 341 STISHIA "I LDV 20X
ATHINDR SNsuIA
frdira STOT

ALMOHLINY LISNYHL TYNCIOTY aNYTIATID 43L1vaND

EZ0Z NN HONOHWHL S1dHI3034 W0V
SHXVYL ISN ONY STTIVS

sieLunss £207 ueyy Jaubiy (206142 Fs) %ICE

BNy 2202 ueys 3By (611 1¥S'9%) %ET S

CGLA

BIBLINSE £207 oUny UBYL 3ot [E7F6E0' S S%0S T
BRIy ZZ0T Sunf uBl 13mo| (L 2Z°LE9%) %812

58L8E'55Z5
FEL'ELL'ERS
Z5EETT LES
ADDEOETES
PEE LB LZS
5L 008 T2S
COUSHIEES
9E0'85)'ETS
FLE'OCS DS
FSO'ZLEHES
LEFOS2'PES
PIF'EL0DEE
Ti0'08Z'1ES

IiVNLEST
£Z0Z

SUC'PoEPSTY

U8'554'TTE
SBE'ZEn 1z
STSFOS'ZES
EFE'RLLDZE
LOLPIG'EES
051 'SFE'TTE
¥Ir'eLeEEs
2B5'BLL'ELE
CEFBLYELS
LS LERETE
FEOBSHFELS
L51ER' RS

WNLDY
44174

Hiuap

Aewng

BRL'LPEEEES 19LOL
SEL'EERDTS HIBWIDAA
EEF'OEEOZE HIGNIAON
SEFOBF LES HIBOLD0
SEZ'9S5 1S HABWILIES
s25'EEg 42 lsnsnw
£85'98.'028 K
PG FLE L ES INAE
STL'CUT LS KW
TFE'LEL 'S Tiday
186 vog'0s HIHYW
BOE'ERE L1 AuNEEE 3
5L TIE'ELS AT

LDV [iETTEWEF
+Z0Z HENOW



RESY
WEET
LGB0
L5560
1%00'e
%009
A
EL'S
00s
%00'S
YklG
YPQG
WPGG
SHOE
il o
SEE T
FTE AR
WODE
1A
SLHEE S

agdl
¥85
Z¥E
o068
LES
661
B9
2L
L8
sy
IFa:
954
0LL
iFa
LLL

it A

HBES
SSE 0

%hBE'S

SSE 0
WEE'S

Hhilg

bk g
W68t
HGE ¥
Y560
SBE'G
WEET
BT
0L L
%450
%SE0
%SE0

HlE'T

WEEE

ONZEA ALEHNAYIN  1S3SHIEM
FDVHIAY QL SAVD  GInHIoY
IOVHIAY

2858
N
T%KDI‘H

FiL

1

8:5'v02" 1% ZZ5'083'skid
&g SP1'E0is L
o3 LSE0LE !
o3 SIG'EETS L
SO0'0LES 0OGODT'OEE  S&0E
{99'148 0oo'000sE  SE0E
872'55% 000° 000 58 LEL
6v2'0/4 0300085 €00t
£EC'56S 003 008'FE oct
25115 000 000 CE QEL
£02'9% 035960 :8 PEE:
PYE'ES OEELMES PBOL
£25'PCS SOR'GEL'LS L69
BEG'E0LE GoD'oe0’'ss  Se0L
Doo'oLes OO0'0GD'51S  SBOL
C/S'EEZS 0G000OS4S  SBO
054'i914 GLL'MeE'EE Cool
262 F2S SZZLBE'PE  OBOL
PO IS CTL'PRC'TS org
0% LOC'BLLEFS H
0ZZ'600%
0% LIFArLE 1
0% trE05LE i
o3 1g2'r0g'st
iE3 89'78 ‘
0% 505 '50E'5% 1
82E°20Z8 A0E'SYLIErS
g YOZ'ZE0' LS L
0% [rAFRR:: 1
0% HOE490% L
0% ooF' Lo L
0% £6L 'YL VES !
Py s ER R I99'70t'88  cEGL
D0 5GL DOO'CO0'EE 58l
D0S'ZES o00'C00'EE SB0L
£82'028 000'C00'te SAOL
FEL'ES oD% LE6'FE GROL
0% SLY'IGS 1
os 55815188
0} BRY'LEFES 1
TFAIDNEE  SAVD
pL-ALF1 WHAL

710 | sbey

HMYH ASH
HNYH ATH
dIBAASHNYE AT
SNWVI00N 134148
SMIO0IN T3S
SALMADIS JOLTIH
SNYI00IN T34H4S
S3ILENI3S 01T
S3ILED3S 0L
SMYIOIIN T34148
SNYIQTIN 334118
SOYIODIN 334118
SRI0DIN 33411S
SOYI0DIN 9341LS
SOVIOOIN 33413
SAYTODIN 1341LE
SAYTIO3IN 13LLE
SOYIO3N 1341ULE
CHO 40 31YLS

OIHO 40 31vLs
dITMMSHNYE ATN

HNwE ATH
OHO 30 31WLS

HNYED ATH
MY NOIDNELNOH
HNYE e
HNYE ATH
OIHQ A0 JLVLS
BITIOOM 1340
SOOI T34LES
SOYICIm 134Es
SOYIOOIN 1341LS
SOYICTIMN 1341
HNYE AT

HMYE NOLONEENOH
NOILNLILSM

Ho3 ADH-NISYE HILYD

O3 INYHD

HIF ADH-HILYI W07

g1H4
Z1H4
DIHA
8344
SKTHA
JWNHA
JWHA
g1H4
JWHS
H1Hd
g1Hd
g1H4d
DHFTHS
8344
HTHd

CHHO BV 1S-HILYN Tv30T

OIHG #91s
8O3 A3

HI3 A3H
OIHG ¥¥1s

HOF AZH
LMACIS ¥l 337vS

ANNDDY ATQOLSND Dkid
QN ALINLIDY 32400403

CIHG HYLS
HiH
g3+
#3HA
HiH4d
g344

LAWWE AZH- 200 INYHIHTW

£3uV ASNON
LNIWNHLENI

£70Z 1€ AVIN 40 SY

SINAWLSIANI AUNSYIHL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALTHOHLIAY LISNVHE TYNOIDIE GNYIFATID HILYIHUD

EE0Z LIS
EZ0EE
LAV
SEOLILLE
SZ0Zrare
CEOLMITIT
CEOEML L
SEOCILLL
FEOEISLIEL
SZOLRETL
STOEILEITL
ErAAL
STOEMEE
STOZMBED
SENZLLES
STOTIEHS
SEOZMOLE
FEOTIBED
AL

EZCEMAG
AL

EZGEID
ELOEHG

EE0T
EEOTILG
A TAS Y
£L0EAI9
ETOED
GZ0gILEM
GEGLIETY
GICELZIL
FEOIOER
FIOLILE
A

AT ERt
3iva

ALENLYW 3ISYHIHNC

EE0ZILENS
SE0ZILESS
BEDEILES
EEOS/E
EE0ZIarT
CTOTBLT
SETOLLLE
ETOLILLSE
ZC0LaLEL
CENTHE0L
ZE0ELENL
CZOEPEIDL
EEOZMERG
CEOZOEM
CEDEHES
CEQEIPES
CEOEMFEE
CEDZIET/E
E20EILES

O« HILEW TY30T TeL0L

Qeend HOEYIN 130T

GNNA LN DE0ANT MY TWEDL

CZOL/EEIG
EZOLHEMS

CEGE/E LG
EZOTILERS

EE0THETIT
EZOTILEE
ALTA N
SE0CIEIE
ETCTATIG
AL TALEAL]
ZOGEMEEY
CEQTILTIE
FEGTIOEIS
LEGENE
EEOEAT/S

Ok3 ANIWIDYCANT pavs
U SONYHNSNG TYLOL

OrNd 3DINVHMS M

CA TREINID Tl

GrNd TPHINTD

QNN LNIWNTHLTY GNOF TYEoL

A ETA R
EER-LE

GNNd LN3WNII1 55 QNG

AN



Ly

eSS

B
Y560
WSE'F
%009
%008
RLLS
Y00
WELS
WSEG
YaEEE
El's
%E1G
il G
WHEL0
YA
WS E
Wo50
W%0FE
YGl'E
YlE'y
%0S'E
HeST
woo'z

HET

E

WECT
FrTacR
WEF G
L1
WEE
s
hGE T

T lLET

%EES

%580

Le¥

cEll
001
eed
g
v

ziq
RiT
08
ERt
2S5
LGt
ezl
LE5
0z
FEE
284
oes
reg
EBL

SoE
5oL
iy
oGy
e
ey
&l

b
i

£98°698'cS

BET'LLLLE
55
[4553
o8
CO0'sEs
CEE'ERLS
SE9'SELS
822'55%
oLG'SE%
{00°'Cs%
B¥Z'9i%
ERY'FLE
I¥2'SES
B0L'BOLS
ERE'LLS
SLG'PELS
LLa'es
SEL'TLS
S0 'FrLS
GIEBELS
SEO'COLS
tEL'EaLS
SBF'TEL
208

BLLERLS
9EL 1%
SFEPE
ZIEEIE
ErTOLS
Zlores
056'BES
FLEELS
04

oS
0%
0%

QTIA ALISNIVIN  1S3HIEM
JOVEIAY OL SAv¥a  GINUDDY

FOVHIAY

b2FSLE L0
L9162 FELS

P T o L
LGF'SHES L
Q08'2s% L

0oo00GsE S80S

O00&'000'0LS S802

00&'000'0LS LEZ

0Co005cS LEL
0e0'000 s LLG
0S000D'GE it le]
QooT0osE  e00:

IES'BERS LLG
D0G0°5S 5805
CES'BFLFE  TO0:
BOGSAR S 5603
COU0S0'ss LGS
Qo00BOSE  SR0%
SBLPESFE S804
OO0 DoD'sE £9%
oo oy es Bzs
GU0ossy ss0d
000055 Se0:
oo0'000'es SaD:
PEEGLE'FS aLg

SLA'IgZ'aLY

0525698 G551
0OO'000'ES  SBOL
000'000EE Seal
00000 58 CE8GL
GIE'SrY' 1S P58
GIE'GYR'LS £16
BEL'¥E6'FE gLG
FLOEGLS 1
SLE'SEE" LS
08215218 1
SEO'PE 1

AIDNIES SAYO

Ry AReER FilE-EFR

z 10 2 afied

GIHC 40 3LYAS
HNYE ATH
HEEYE ONd

SNYIODIN 13518
SNYIODEN 134118
SAILIEFEDAS dOLTIH
SALLHDAS JOLTH
SNYIOMN 133118
SHLLRRD3S JOLT I
SNYIQDIN 13348
SMYIOJIN 134148
SNYIQDIN T34148
SNYIQTIN 13448
SNYI0IN 134118
STLEHDAS dO0LTIH
SMYI0JIN 134145
SNYIOTIN 134145
STLLRENR03S JCLTHH
SALLIENDAS 01T
SNYI0DIN 133145
SNYIOMN 135148
SM¥I0DIN 133115
S3LIEADAS 0L

SYI00IN 13813
SAYICOIN 13418
SAYIOOM 13488
SAVYIOSIN 13RS
SNWHOTIN 134iLS
SOVICOH 13LS
S3LMHN33S JO1TH
HNYE ATH

QIHO 40 JUYLES
HNYE ATH

NOILNLILSM

COHHO YYLS
Y33 A9H

LMFHOS3Y AQOESND ONd

BIHA
G1H4
STHA
SRS
g1H4
2144
8244
g1H4d
SHHS
SHUTHS
40 WOy LHENSYIEE S
H9 WDH g4
30 W0 g4
45 Wl 9044
g4
g71H4
g1H4
g1H4
8TH4
JA0ON AHOSYIHEL 5N

RS
2344
g4
8H4
BIH4
BIHA
ZEON AHMSYIHL 8N
H33 A3H

OIHD 5918
¥I3 AZH

LNINNHLSHE

€Z0Z 'LE AV 20 SV
SINIWISIANI AMNSYIYL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALTHOHLAY LISNVHL TYNOIOTY ANV 1EAITD H3ILVIHD

il

EZOES 19
-EZhErlg
QEGEALTIE

ETENAL T
CEGLLR
SEOEHTE
SETOT/LTE
VEGEIGLEL
GEQE/LLLL
FEOEMRBEIT
SEHEALEN
SEOTMRE L
YEQESLL
FEOSIBEE
SEOERELSS
PEOEMITE
FELEMETE
LE0L/AE
SE0Z/0C6
SEOTOES
SZOC LI
LZOTIOEM L

PEOZAIE
FEOZISH
FEOCIOEE
YEOTISENS
FEOCIBTIT
PEOESTIG
FEOCITEY
ESATAE RS

£eGenag
EE0ZIL9
3i%0
ALENLYW

EEDENENS
£2oEnt)e
LE0ENLS
AL TN

PANEALS
L ETAL AT

LLDEMEE
ETOCILEE
LTRENTIE
EZOEILLE
CEOESLIE
£T0LILE
gLhemeii L
bOZSLAL L
CEQE/BEN
ETOEIETSS
to0gm|idl
CCOEESY
EENZAE
ZEOERESS
CE0ZEL
ZelEiv Ly
LEOTME

(AT
LE0ESY
EEAETA ]
}EOESER
ZE0LSEEE
SCDEMGET
STOERIS
EEgEne/s

EZ0LIIESG
EE0TIES
diva
ISVHOEND

SONNE TV IWLO0L
ONfS IAYISTYH TWLOL

CHNd 3AY353Y

O TV LISYD YWIE TYioL

OHNd Trlideyd vid
ONE HOISHIS WAL

ONMd HOISNEd
aNnd



O8%'8r LS

6B LEL g
JUSWEINSY pUog

00056 LIFRE | 00 GLAE'OFS'RE 00 DOGDLY LE 00°5L6°0E6% 0068085 oS OO SA6006S DO OND'SES LES
Q0 00S 4551 C0osL'o0E"s oo 'osa’s 02052 088 Q052 '08E 0oc 00 CEL 05T 09'000'080'0%
O 09 SESL G005 ZEr'L GOO000sT O00GLTLL oo0s2'zsl 000 000EL'EL O OOC'0LE'S
OU0SL 88y GOSLE'GE0 T COonY00LS J0GLE'3RE GO'SLE 368 oG D0'5iE°95¢ COOnSes's
GOO0Z'3Z9°L COOnLsLLL COODOTGLY'E Q0oL '5GE COacL'80L uleNe e NE TNy QUO00' OFD's
£I0T LZOTILICE EZOTAREL E20THIEL ECOTILiG EZ0ZILG £LOTILIG ZZOTARE
juslizanbay | auswannbay gefey jageded Auswannbay i31aeied Bigeied Bujpumsing
180 oL a%Akag 3080 1ediug 1SaEayu; AAIBE a0 red|siig isalaiuy jediouig 0

£20Z '1¢ AVIE 30 SV
SNLiVLS ONY JINQ3HIS 32IANIES 1830
ALRBOHLNY LISNYYL TWNOIDIY ANYI3AT 1O ¥3LVIND

Fembay nisy 195 ANaon

{£207 40} 9pISY 188 aoueleg Juakng

080t 98
LZ0Z 98
QE0T 980
A AR
aeg
Apumely
reL

Spuog {Ejo]
‘A9 ¥B) S9ES-SINT SHUSS
ATy XB] SSIES-QLOT S2eg
AEy XE] SSRS-GLIE S3leg

AEY XB) SSER-YRLIZ SIUSS

spuog



%eL0 EDD
%B5: i Rl
il “HER'E %0gE
WIL'E %LGE YA
“lB'E H%E0T %i8C
SBiE G485 'Z HEE'E
“%E0E Y%B0'L A
L Yl SB0E
“Li'l R T Sk L
%080 %8eh 80}
%00 WED B0
%010 o TANE %EFD
GlO{) oA WETO
b0 WO 0 WGl G
#dIiA #ONEA aa3iA

A3MdVIE  JUYONYLS 39vuIAY

2O

FER'¥LO'9S

QLA GRE LS
Alg'logt
£9)'208" 1%
OPE'R0GE
£51'564%
CEL'RFCSE
I9E'95Es
os0'teTE
BGS'B0LE
AL POT
08E'LtS
£98'LE%
J3NyYS
1SFHIINI

£2L'EE6'GRES

TET PP GLES
¥l or6ass
PESOP LS50S
LIRTAPTCOES
BB IR5'0S5S
g9eg'ask'85cs
69L6L6'65E63
SFS'S05'OrES
POS SOE'BRES
0S5'clE'0828
954'04 7' 00ES
ZI5'Pra'osTs
IONTIVE
ASYHIAY

iE0

Hagl

RESt
%b8 ¥
RB9 ¥
TR
i
# I3A

LHARAGNOWN  GUYONYLS

FLRr

%95 F

YES
WIB'F
Wbl
%25
YRS ¥
# O34

Dlers ABQ L puns Asuciy Aunsesi] §0 si2nbs plalL, 19 &

Y%S0'F

WOET
Bl ¥
Rkt
YT
3ELE
(R ETTY

FOVHIAY
€202

£20Z 1 AW HONOBHL 31v0 OL ¥v3A
FONYWEHOIHId LNINISIANL 20 AHYININAS

ALRIOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIDTYE ONVTIIAT 1D H3LVIHD

'S{ig AINSEaI] YIuow g 403 SRS JURBamba uodnod afiane BUMO &

¥3ON| {EIANNT B3AG0 SOTIA IOVHIAY V1IN

(Nohishgtiy

EYITIFLE
FEEBER' LS
LETEFE LS
BES'5Z0'1S
vGLBE0" 1S
g3Nyv3
FREEoE N

B59'Z08'aLE

VBE'85H'ESES
S9Z'86Z'08ES
BiS'IBE'RLES
€57 THT'GLES
858'00I'ELES
3oHvIvE
IDVHIAY

JLVd OL wvY3A

Y¥3gawd>3a

HAFWIACH

E380100

H3agW3ld3s

LSNSOY

ATOr

aMar

A

Ny

HOdWIA

AxyTygE=S

AN
HINOW



SE'R9L

£4'850°cs
LG'G0LE
8E7E50%
S8 2pS

8228788

LLTLTEOLE

86'GlE'CES
86'SLEELE

¥5'8L0'5018
LE'0BL'EPGS
ER'6.8'8LE
LB'SELS
LEB'BSF'L1S
L6 20¥%'¥%
Z0'PSLTO%
8o'zet

bl ee9'zs
O eyD'LES
B¥'GRECZS

——e e,

BFGRT GZS

£ jo i abeg

JiY0 QL YY3A 2207
34¥0 OL "U¥3A €202

EE0Z AVWI

31¥0 OL YW¥3A 2oL
JIV0 OL WY3A £207

ECIE AW

V0 O UV3A 2202
3EY0 OL ¥VIA £202

XAUTARN L

3190 O1 Hv3A 2202
31¥3 04 ¥vdA €202

£Z0T AV

£2OT AVIN

OIHOYY.LS
ANMOO0Y 39S MNvE ASM
QNAD INJWIDEOANT MY

QHOUYLS
NN FDNYEASNI

JNMNOTIV dIIANE HNYE AZH-LNNOOOY INYHIHIW
NGOV AQOLSND DN

LNMODDY J33MMS HMYH A3

QIHOHY LS

ENNOOIY XL S TWS-NOLIOMILNMH

QNMd TYH3INID

1T AINOW NOLOMNIANOH
ONAd INJAIHIITY aNOE

(SISVE HSVO) SONINYYI LNIWLSIANI NO L5043y
ALIMOHLINY LISNVUL TYNOIDIY ONVIIAT IO H3LYIND



SL8LE'9TE
LLGLTLELS
£6'615'20%
EEGLE
QC'00%'29%

25E%

AL 'vEs
Qe'sig
ge61%

8Ot
yETET'9TS
SYers'es
LE°LE
80'1¥6'5S

LIGLZ'ELLS
PELPE' YL LS
¥l DBZ'S0PS
Oy ¥E¥7S
000052518
00'528'99%
PL7LDG'SELS

t o g =bed

3V CL WY3IA E20E
FEVI Ol HW3A £202
CI0T AW

3iY0 OF UV3A 2208
2IV0 OL ¥Y3A 2202
EZOT AWM

3IV0 OL Yv3A 2202
SLV0 0L WV E20T
ELOT AW

JEVD OL 9v3A 2207
190 0L YA €202
£20C AWIN

€202 AVW

(SISVE HSVO} SONINYYI LNIWLSIAN! NO 1HOd3Y
ALIHOHINY LISNVHL TYNCIOTYH ANYIIAT IO YILYIND

ANNDIOV d33MME MY AT

FLON AHNSYIHL Sn
aNnd TYLIdYD YLY

1 IAEYIN ATNOW HNYE ASH
INNOIIY ALALLDV 33A0 40

INAOIDVY 433MS HNYE ATH

QIHOYYLS
QNMNd NOiSN3Id

ENNGIIY d3IMS HNYE AT

HNTHA
g2044

HI LYW T OCT-OHOEY LS

aNNd HOLYW 19301



T80y
BSO'ZOE'BLES

£FE'804'0%
£08'695°cS
{262’08 L&)

€4L82L'P8
A1va 0L
HY3A €202

ZHLLFPEES
86224818
SL000'LOL LS

S0VELGLLE
£90ES LI5S
55952 '367%
dL8L0°LE
0G005'TES
00°629'0028
0305188
00'052'9%
00'SZ9'est
o00sL'ele
0osZi'es
G8'165'80LS

£jo g abeq

SabEr
LEE'BSB'ERES
EFOTTLY LS

E9E'G08'sS
({22 vBr'CSl

100°L0L1L S
AV

31v0a Ol "3 Z20E
3iVa 01 ¥V¥3A 2oE
£20T AVIN

Ji¥0 OL dY3A 2202
JIVQ O W34 £202
EZ0C Aw¥

£20T AVIN

SANINISIANI NO O13IA 30VHIAY

{LSCO) IONVYTIYE LNIWESIAN] IOVHIAY

QINHYE VOON] 1834 LINI
ONIONS

‘ONINNIZ3E

LSIAHIIME GINHIIV

{SISva HSYD) GIAIZOIY 1SITHILNI

SONNL TV IVLOL

INAHOO DY S33IMS HNYE AT
LION AHASYIHL Sn

HIH4

g1H4d

VAR

8044

JLON AYNSYIHL sn

FLON AHOSYIHL S
GiHOHYLS

aMOd 3AH3SI

(SISYE HSVO) SONINYYI INIINLSTANI NO 1H0dTy
ALHOHLNY LISNVEL TWNOIDTY GNY13AT IS ¥3LYIHD



ALIHNLIYR
ADYHIAY

%0E T
%ZEE
%SE D
%BE'G
%960
Y%ItE
a31A
ISYHIAY

%00700k
e FI
%10
E A EA
SO0
YA
T¥LOL

A0 AN3IH3d

80Z'c90'zaEs
000'00Y L¥ZS
SOB'E1ILTS
L047CG6'ET53
EFL05ES
£4ESEZ'6E
LMAORNY
dovd

£20Z "LE AVYIN SY

[REAETR RS
£T8CGL I¥ed
SOB'CIETS
L0LEGB'TTLS
EFL0818
EPSEEC S
TYdiONIgd

OO 1d0d INIWLSIANI 40 NOILISOJINOD

OHOJHUG 4 JUILLSa AL B} |
S91IN0SS JUSLIBADDY "G
Wnoasy ey Epaln sbuiweg
GO lelg
uNoaoy daams yueg Aoy
URSDoY 3eYisiy Asuo|y
USWnGsu;



TUDRRIOL [RUDIHDRE 104

UB-QTHE 0N UONNDSRY S83I5RIL 40 pUB0E PUE BE[ 3:NPAEJ0L4 SARENSUIUEY (AN At b ALAGYINY I5USa}; [EUDIAFY PUB|ZA3|] 201RIZ S5] 46 SHCIENEDY DU SHNY PP B i0 999 Jasd ey 0] :8)5) asea|g
2307 §T ReW PAER AU USRI Y O WRUz0S AIDSIADY LEISUDISSLILIGT SHYIA Qa3
BO-TTOF J23quehy Vo0 USISSILLIGT ST Oy
CTOE "5 ARl PoIep (SJtegy 18337 - WS] pacjuag Juny |A3ys 01 uopIdg AICSIApY J£15 UDISSILLGT SHYT Y0
T-rZZQ-4N I EQQT JAGWAN 0IEE( FRLAGEUT USISSILULIDT SHET oI5
(31 pue [QIECZ0T SUDILIAS APB] PAsIATY T

Yuit A3UL|ELUOZ 1 34 0F SIERPMMPUE HOeaidde Joy paprosd Busg 5 L ELIc U 10 ]

SLOMN
z2@paH |ang HRE SIARH OING
JEJZSEEEY pUog UDLEN] 30, M O juBg
SIUZLULERAL-0UD YHLS
R FILAETal+ 4]
WACDSY XBZ $285 PuB IWBW3k]ay puog Hueg ueiduzunz:
TURAZI2Y MO335] [REC TR TIE
PEIBEIUD PER INGINY (RIDGISHT JURE MG
samaas Fupueg wiEy ®UER A3y
SIS EOUERY 1O 2inien USRS L jeEILELE] fpueg
. £Z0Z 'TE Aoy jo sy

sdegsUDieRY [eidueus pue Suxuey
Ajlloytey Bsets [EUCIdaY PUEDAR|D JNE3IS



